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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The Board of School Directors
Tunkhannock Area School District
Tunkhannock, Pennsylvania

Report ou the Fiuaucial Statements
We have audited the accompanyiog fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the busioess-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaioiog fund information of the Tunkhannock Area School
District, Tunkhannock, Pennsylvania as of and for the year ended June 30,2013, and the related notes to the
fmancial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed io the table of
contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements in accordance
with accountiog principles generally accepted io the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maiotenance of iotemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these fmancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in "Government Auditing Standards", issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaio reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtaio audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, includiog the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers iolemal control relevant to the Tunkhannock Area School District's
preparation and fair presentation of the fmancial statements io order to design audit procedures that are
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appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Tunkhannock Area School District's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fmancial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
op1111ons.
Opinions
In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Tunkhannock Area School District, Tunkhannock, Pennsylvania, as of June 30,
2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Suppiementmy InJonnation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 13 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is required by the Government Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic fmancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit ofthe basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procednres do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assnrance.
Other I1iformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Tunkhannock Area School District's basic financial statements. The supplementary information on
pages 49 through 56 as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditnres of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-l33, "Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations", and is also not a required part of the financial
statements.
The supplementary information on pages 49 through 56 as listed in the table of contents and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procednres applied in the audit ofthe basic fmancial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
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statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information on pages 49 through 56 as listed in
the table of contents and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required hy Governmental Auditing Standards
In accordance with "Government Auditing Standards", we have also issued our report dated November 4,2013 on
our consideration ofthe Tunkhannock Area School District's internal control over [mancial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results ofthat testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
"Government Auditing Standards" in considering the Tunkhannock Area School District's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

November 4, 2013
Moscow, Pennsylvania
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The Tunkhannock Area School district's discussion and analysis provides an overview ofthe district's fmancial
perfonnance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2013. The intent of the Management Discussion and
Analysis (MDA) is to look at the school district's financial perfonnance as a whole. Please read it in
conjunction with the district's financial statements and notes to the financial statements, which immediately
follow this section.
The MDA is a component of the reporting model specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for
State and Local Govel7lments issued in June 1999.
DISTRICT FINANCIAL STRUCTURE
The Tunkhannock Area School District was fonned by state law and began operations around 1970 as a School
District of the Third Class.
Tunkhannock is approximately 30 miles northwest of Scranton, PA. Tunkhannock Area School District
encompasses an area approximately 292 square miles in Wyoming County. The District is comprised of 13
municipalities. These include Eaton Township, Falls Township, Forkston Township, Lemon Township,
Mehoopany Township, Monroe Township, North Branch Township, Northmoreland Township, Overfield
Township, Tunkhannock Borough, Tunkhannock Township, Washington Township, and Windham Township.
These 13 municipalities have a total population of 19,490 as of the 2010 census. The district has a student
population of2,640.
The governing body of the School District is a board of nine school directors who are each elected to a four year
tenn. The district is divided into three regions and each region elects 3 directors. Daily operations and
management of the School District is carried out by the administrative staff, headed by the Superintendent of
Schools who is appointed by the Board of School Directors.
The School Directors serve on the Board without compensation. These Directors have the power and duty to
establish, equip, furnish and maintain a sufficient number of elementary, secondary and other schools necessary
to educate every person residing in the District, between the ages of six and twenty-one years, who may attend.
The Board of School Directors have the power to detennine its budget; to approve and modifY that budget; to
levy taxes, set rates and establish charges; and to issue bonded debt. The powers may be exercised without
substantive approval by another government.
The District is subject to the general review ofthe Pennsylvania Department of Education on matters that are
relevant to the detennination of fiscal independence. The review generally includes an approval process that is
compliance oriented and is more ministerial than substantive in nature. These reviews occur annually by
independent auditors and every two years by the Office of the Auditor General for the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania.
The District consists of four elementary schools (grades K-4), one middle school (grades 5-8) and one high
school (grades 9-12).
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BUDGET PREPARATION AND ADOPTION
The development, review and adoption ofthe 2012-13 Governmental Fund Budget was completed with a
detailed and exhaustive review of every revenue and expenditure item within the context of the District's
mission, goals, and financial policies. The budget review process was conducted over several meetings from
January through June 2012 The final budget adoption was on June 21, 2012.
CURRlCULUM AND INSTRUCTION GOALS
Each year the Board ofDirec!ors adopts Curriculum and Instruction Goals as a vehicle to improve the education
program to meet the guidelines ofthe Strategic Plan. Budget priorities for 2012-2013 addressed those
expenditures that most enhanced the educational process via the strategic plan. The allocation of revenue and
expenditures to support educational programs and services defined by the District's mission and goals are
articulated through financial and operating policies. It is a delicate balance of policy choices. It also represents
a delicate balance between the education needs of students and the ability of the community to provide the
necessary [mancial support.

FINANCIAL IDGHLIGHTS
•

Overall revenues in the general fund were $41,564,534, which is a 1.9% increase from last year. Total
expenditures from the General fund were $36,446,760 which is a 1.4% decrease from last year. Refer to
Figures 1 & 2 for classification of general fund revenues and expenses.

•

The district revenues are comprised of Local, State and
Federal sources. As shown in Figure 1.

Revenue Sources
Federal

o Local

•

Local Revenues are 53% ($22,212,442) ofthe total,
State Revenues are 45% ($18,549,308) and Federal
Revenues are 2% ($802,784).

•

Local Revenues increased by 5.9% or $1,230,368 due
primarily to the real-estate millage increase, a one-time
"gas lease signing bonus" on various district properties
and higher Earned Income and Real Estate Transfer Tax
Figure 1
collections. These increases were partially offset by the
elimination of the "one-month premium credit" of$366,000 from the District's Healthtrust and lower
Deliquent Tax collections. Current Real Estate Tax revenue increased by 4.7% or $763,504. There was
a 2. I mil tax increase for the 2012-13 fiscal year. The value of a mill (gross) for 2012-13 was $289,09 I
as compared to $282,622 for 201 1-12. The District's gas lease revenues soared by 234% or $548,800
from $235,034 to $783,834 due almost entirely to a one-time signing bonus of $524,488 on the
District's Tunkhannock and Mill City properties.
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+

State Revenues dropped by $183,263 or 1% in 2012-13 due primarily to the elimination of the Dual
Enrollment Grant and reductions in the Pre-K Counts grant and other various subsidies.

+

Federal Revenues dropped by $279,696 or 25.8% primarily due to reduced claims reimbursement under
the School Based Access Program as well as lower Title
I & II allocations.

+

Total Expenditures & Other Financing from the General
Fund decreased by $262,758 or 0.6%. In Figure 2 you
can see the breakdown of expenditures for 2012-13.
Instructional costs represent 60% ($23,994,830) of the
total expenditures and Instructional Student Support was
$2,782,399 or 7%. Operation & Maintenance of
Buildings ($3,952,132 or 10%) and Other Financing
Uses & Debt Service ($3,577,526 or 9%) are the next
highest expenditures.

Expenditures & Other Financing
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Instructional expenditures decreased by $304,068
(1.2%). The major decrease was in Instructional
Fignre 2
Salaries which dropped by $ I.I 5 million (7.9%) due
primarily to staff reductions and a 42% ($183,700) drop in early retirement incentive payments. This
decrease was largely offset by increases in payments for employer retirement contributions,
Intermediate Unit professional services and tuition to Cyber/Charter Schools.

•

The Maintenance and Operating cost of the buildings increased by 5.1% ($192,433). This was largely a
result of increased benefits expenditures and contracted maintenance services expenses. Increased
electricity expenses were offset by lower heating oil expenditures. The building projects came to an end
in 2007-08. All buildings are renovated and the oldest building is our Middle School which was built in
1998.

•

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania largely funds transportation. Reimbursements are one year behind
actual costs. Due to the large area covered by the district, our transportation costs of $2,594,638 or
6.5% are a large portion of the expenditures. Transportation costs fell by 12.7% or $378,104 due to
consolidation of bus routes.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis, the basic financial
statements, and the required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of
statements that present different perspectives ofthe district:
•

The first two basic financial statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both shortterm and long- term information about the district's overall financial status.

•

The remaining basic financial statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of
the district, reporting the district's operations in more detail.
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The fmancial statements also include notes that explain certain data in the statements and provide more
comprehensive information. The fmancial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary
information that further explains the financial statements with a comparison ofthe district's budget for the year.
District-wide Statements
The district-wide statements report information about the district as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private sector companies. The statement of net assets included all of the district's net assets and
how they have changed. Net assets are the difference between the district's assets and liabilities and are
considered one way to measure the district's fmancial health. The statement of activities accounts for all of the
current year's revenues and expenditures, regardless of whether the asset is received or paid.
•
•

Over time, increases or decreases in the district's net assets are an indicator of whether the financial
position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.
To assess the overall fmancial condition of the district's additional non-fmancial factors, such as
changes in the district's property tax base, the condition of school buildings and other facilities should
be considered.

In the district-wide fmancial statements, the district activities are divided into two categories:

•

•

Govemmental activities: Most of the district's basic services are included here such as regular,
special and adult education, transportation, administration, and community services. Property taxes
and state subsidies finance most ofthe activities that occur in the General Fund.
Business-type activities: The district's food service program revenues and expenditures are
recorded here.
Fund .Financial Statements

The fund fmancial statements provide more detailed information about the district's funds, not the district as a
whole. Funds are accounting devices the district uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending
on particular programs. Some funds are required by State Law and by bond covenants. The district established
other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (like repaying it's long-term debt) or to show
that it is properly using certain revenues (like federal grants).
The district has three types of funds:

:.- Govemmentfilllds: Most of the district's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on (I) the cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash flow in
and out (2) the balances left at year-end are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps the reader determine whether there are
more or fewer fmancial resources that can be spent in the near future to fmance the district's programs.
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus ofthe district-wide
statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements that
explain the relationship (or difference) between them.
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»

Proprietmy filllds: These funds are used to account for district activities that are similar to business
operations in the private sector. When the district charges fees for services provided to customers, the
services are usually reported a proprietary funds. The Food Service Fund is the district's proprietary
fund and is the same as the business-type activities reported in the district-wide statements, but provide
more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.

»

Fidllcimy filllds: The district is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as the
student activities fund. The district is responsible for ensuring that those to whom the assets belong use
them only for their intended purpose. The District excludes these activities from the district-wide
[mancial statements because they cannot use these assets to [mance its operations.

Tunkhannock Area School District
Major Features
Government-wide and Fnnd Financial Statements
Fnnd Statements
Government-wide
Statements

Scope

Entire School District
(Except fiduciary funds)

Governmental Funds
The activities of the School
District that are not proprietary
or fiduciary, such as education,
administration and community
services
Balance sheet; statement of
revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance

Required
financial
statements

Statements of net assets;
statement of activities

Accounting
basis and
measurement
focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Modified accrual accounting
and current financial resources
focus

Type of
asset/liability
information

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and
capital, and short~tenn
and 10ng- term

Type of
inflow/outflow
infonnation

All revenues and
expenses during the year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

Only assets expected to be used
up and liabililies that come due
during the year or soon
thereafter; no capital assets
included
Revenues for which cash is
received during or soon after
the end of the year,
expenditures when goods or
services have been received and
payment is due during the year
or soon thereafter

Fignre3
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Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

Activities the School
District operates similar

Instances in which the
School District is the
trustee or agent to
someone else's resourcesscholarship funds.
Statement of fiduciary net
assets; statement of
changes in fiduciary net
assets

to private businessFood Services
Statemenl of net assets;
statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in
nel assets; statement of
cash flows
Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and
capital, and short-term
and long-term

All assets and liabilities,
both shortwterm and long~
term

All revenues and
expenses during the year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received
arpaid

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013
(UNAUDITED)
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
Net Assets
The district's total net assets were $11,511,762 at June 30,2013. This represents an increase of 24.4% or
$2,261,359 from June 30,2012.
Current Assets
The Current Assets are comprised of79.3% ($11,282,995) Cash and Cash Equivalents. The next largest
component of Current Assets is $1,717,464 in Tax Receivables. (See figure 4)
Current Assets
Internal

Due From
Gov!..

!leash &Equiv.
DTaK Receivable
IJln\ernal Balances
0.4%
DQull From Gov!.

0.5%

BOther Ree.
Dlnvenlories

Equiv.

793%

Figure 4
Non Current Assets
As shown below in Figure 5, Building and Furniture Assets combined accounted for 97.6% ($31,942,540) ofthe
Non Current. Buildings and Furniture are the major assets that the district holds.
Non-Current Assets &
Un.mod Deferred Outflows
Bond

Financing

eLand
mSite Improv.

CBuHding
l@Fumiture

IIUnamort Bond
Financing Costs

Figure 5
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Liabilities
Accrued Salaries and Benefits account for 42.66% ($3,834,204) of the Current Liabilities. The next largest
component of current liabilities is the current portion of Long-term Obligations at 27.01 % ($2,427,348) and
these are shown below in Figure 6.

Current Liabilities
C~unls

Payable

Curro Port
LTObL
27.0%

lIIA:crued Sm. & Sen

EJPccrued Inlered

OCurr. Portion LT Obi .

• Curr. Portion Compo
Mlsence3

10.0%

OOther Current Usb.

Figure 6

Since buildings represent the largest Non Current Asset, the largest and primary Non Current Liability is Bonds
Payable representing 96.96% in this category (figures are shown below). Compensated Absences has decreased
marginally from $776,852 to $761,654. The special termination benefits are part of the GASB 45 accounting
for post employment benefits.

Bonds Payable
Long-term portion of
Compensated
Absences
Long-term portion of
Special Term. Benefits
OBEP Obligation

$
$

25,612,353
761,654

96.59%
2.87%

$

133,614

0.50%

$

10,141

0.04%

The General Fund Balance has continued to grow (see Figure 7 below) in anticipation of increased retirement
contribution expenses resulting from the PSERS funding issues.
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Figure 7
Comparative Aualysis - Years Ending 2012 & 2013
In comparing the Statement of Net Assets, the Total Net Assets increased by 19.41 %. Unrestricted net assets
showed the largest increase due to an increase in property taxes and gas lease revenue. Refer to Figure 8 below
to view the comparison.
Total
Governmental
Condensed Statement of
Net Assets

2013

CUrrent Assets

SI1,190,499

Non-Current Assets

Total

Percentage

School District

Activities

Activities

2012

Total Assets

Business-type

Change

2012

2013

SI57,641

$11,552.954

514,394,527

24.60%

$437,425

S34,952,991

$33,157,014

-5.14%

$595,066

$46,505,945

$47,551,541

2.25%

2012

2013

$14,236.886

$362,455

S34,49O,857

532,719,589

$462,134

$45,681,356

$46,956,475

$824,589

S7,303,819

58,988,437

5124,244

$151,186

S7,428,063

59,139,623

23.04%

Non-Current Liabilities

$29,387,055

$26,517,762

59,240

$13,849

S29,396,295

$26,531,61 I

-9.75%

Total Liabilities

$36,690,874

$35,506,199

S133,484

$165,035

$36,824,358

$35,671,234

-3.13%

$3,820,840

$4,311,343

$462,134

5437,425

54,282,974

$4,748,768

10.88%

5939,429

$843,364

5939,429

$843,364

-ID.23%

Current Liabilities

Invested in Capital net of
related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

54230,213

55,927,024

5187,882

(57.394)

54,418,095

55,919,630

33.99%

Total Nel Assets

S8,990,482

$11,081,731

S650,016

S430,031

59,640,498

$11,511,762

19.41%

Figure 8
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The Statement of Activities Comparison shows that the program revenues dropped by 4.83%, and the
overall revenues increased by 3.51 %. Other revenue increased 13.4% and Property Taxes increased by 4.28%.
Expenses increased only 0.2% in total. A 12.72% drop in Transporation expense was offset by increases in
Instruction, Instruction Support and Maintenance. These results can be reviewed on the table in Figure 9 shown
below.
Total
Governmental
Changes in Net Assets
from Operating
Results

Total

%

Activities

School District
2012
2013

Change

Activities

2012
Program

Business-type

2013

2012

2013

RC1'eIllU!S

Charges for Services
Operating Grants &
Contributions

588,675

575,184

5617,467

5561,551

5706,142

5636,735

-9.83%

58,425,599

57,938,297

5738,672

5782,896

59,164,271

58,721,193

-4.83%

$17,998,640

518,769,029

517,998,640

518,769,029

4.28%

511,700,347
S2,739,941
S32,438,928

511,701,775
S3,108,21O
$33,579,014

511,700,347
S2,741,481
S32,440,468

511,701,775
S3,108,897
S33,579,701

0.01%
13.40%
3.51%

Instruction
Inst Student Support
Admin & Business
Maintenance &
Operation')
Transportation
Interest on Long Tenn

S23,896,964
52,559,310
52,539,981

S24,218,242
$2,720,729
S2,361,797

S23,896,964
52,559,310
S2,539,981

S24,218,242
$2,720,729
52,361,797

1.34%
6.31%
-7.02%

S3,755,244
S2,972,742

S3,922,607
$2,594,638

S3,755,244
$2,972,742

S3,922,607
S2,594,638

4.46%
-12.72%

Debt

SI,180,465
SI,433,810
S847,965
SO
539,186,481

SI,064,353
SI,426,387
S802,398
SO
S39,111,151

SI,407,573
SI,407,573

SI,565,119
SI,565,119

SI,180,465
SI,433,810
S847,965
SI,407,573
S40,594,054

SI,064,353
SI,426,387
$802,398
SI,565,119
S40,676,270

-5.37%
11.19%
0.20%

Changc in Net Assets

SI,766,721

S2,481,344

($49.894)

($219.985)

SI,716,827

S2,261,359

31.72%

Net Asset Beginning of
Period
Prior Period Adjustmenl

$7,223,761
SO

S8,600,387
SO

$699,910
SO

S650,016
$0

$7,923,671
SO

S9,250,403
SO

16.74%

Net Asset End ofPcriod

S8,990,482

SII,081,731

$650,016

$430,031

S9,640,498

SII,511,762

19.41%

Gelleral RCI'CllIleS

Property Taxes
Grants/SubsidieslContri
butions not restricted
Other
Total Revenues
Expettses

Unallocated Dep
Other
Food Service
Tolal Expenses

SI,540
SI,540

S687
S687

Figure 9

12.

-9.84%
-0.52%

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRlCT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013
(UNAUDITED)

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
The fmancial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors, with a general
overview of the district's fmances and to demonstrate the district's accountability. If you have any questions
about this report or need additional infonnation, please contact Patrick J. O'Shea, Business Manager at (570)
836-8226 or by mail at the Tunkhannock Area School District, 41 Philadelphia Avenue, Tunkhannock, P A
18657.

13.

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30. 2013
BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL
TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ACTIVITIES
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Taxes Receivable, Net
Interfund Receivables
Intergovernmental Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Other Receivables, Net
Total Current Assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Land
Land improvements
Building and building improvements
Fixtures and equipment
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Non-current Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized deferred charges on bond refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interfund Payables
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries & Benefits
Accrued Interest
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Unearned Revenues
Current Portion of Compensated Absences
Current portion of Special Termination Benefits
Other Current Liabilities
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations
Total Current Liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds Payable
Long-Term Portion of Compensated Absences
Long-Term Portion of Special Termination Benefits
OPEB Obligation
Total Non-current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized premium on issuance of bonds

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 11,282,995

$

TOTAL

88,540
0
0
0
24,070
45,031
0
0
157,641

$11,371,535

0
1,717,464
109,983
1,005,316
66,804
0
54,324
14,236,886
326,860
1,825,845
54,543,444
4,142,692
(28,297,634)
32,541,207

0
0
836,205
357,604
(756,384)
437,425

326,860
1,825,845
55,379,649
4,500,296
(29,054,018)
32,978,632

o

1,717,464
109,983
1,029,386
111,835

o

54,324
14,394,527

178,382
178,382

0
0

178,382
178,382

46,956,475

595,066

47,551,541

0
1,105,169
3,834,204
471,526
543,632
0
253,885
221,558
131,115
2,427,348
8,988,437

109,983
0
0
0
0
41,203
0
0
0
151,186

109,983
1,105,169
3,834,204
471,526
543,632
41,203
253,885
221,558
131,115
2,427,348
9,139,623

25,612,353
761,654
133,614
10,141
26,517,762
35,506,199

13,849
13,849
165,035

25,612,353
761,654
133,614
23,990
26,531,611
35,671,234

368,545
368,545

0
0

368,545
368,545

4,311,343

437,425

4,748,768

843,364

5,927,024
$11,081,731

(7,394)
$430,031

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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843,364
5,919,630
$11,511,762

EXl'ENSES
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
INSTRUCTION:
Regular

Special
Vocational
Other Instructional Programs

$ 16,628,786
5,638,718
1,567,028
175,720

o
o

Adult Education Programs
Community/Jr. College Programs

Prc·K Education Programs
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
SUPPORT SERVICES:
Pupil Personnel
Instructional Sian"
Administmtion
Pupil Health

Business
Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services
Student Transportation Services

Cenlrnl
Other Support Services

TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICES
OPFRATION OF
NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
Unallocutcd depreciation cx.pcnse
Interest on Long-Term Debt
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Food Service
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

207,990
24,218,242

1,254,410
858,764
1,850,301
607,555
446,174
3,922,607
2,594,638
65,322
63.545
11,663~316

738,853
1,426,387
1,064,353

J9,TTD5T
1,565,119
$ 40,676,270

GENERAL REVENUES
Property laxes, levied for general purposes
Public utility realty, per capita and occupational
taxes levied for general purposes
Grants, subsidies and contributions not restricted
Investment earnings
Refund of prior years expenditures
Miscellaneous income
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES
Change in Net Position
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

TUNK.HANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30,7013

GENERAL
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Taxes Receivable, Net
lntcrfund Receivables
Intergovernmental Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses

$ 10,372,431

OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

CAPITAL
PROJECTS
$

843,364

0
0
0
0

13,326,322

TOTAL ASSETS

$ 11,21;,795

$

0

0
1,717,464
109,983
1,00;,316
66,804
0
;4,324

843,364

0

14,169,686

1,717,464
109,983
1,00;,316
66,804
0
54,324

Other Receivables, Net

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES

lnterfund PayabJes
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries & Benefits
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Other Current Liabilities

0
1,10;,169
3,834,204
543,632
131,11;

0

0

0
1,10;,169
3,834,204
;43,632
131,11;

TOTAL LIABILITIES

5,614,120

0

0

;,614,120

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue-property taxes

1,139,196

1,139,196

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1,139,196

1,139,196

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Restricted for:
Capital outlays
Committed for:
Future pension obligations
Unassigned:
Unassigned

0

66,804
0
843,364

66,804
0
843,364

3,;00,000

0

3,;00,000

3,006,202

0

0

3,006,202

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

6,;73,006

843,364

0

7,416,370

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

S 13,326,322

$

843,364

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part or these financial statements.
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$ 14,169,686

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE TO
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30. 2013

$ 7,416,370

Total Governmental Fund Balance
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets
consist of:

326,860
1,825,845
54,543,444
4,142,692
(28,297,634)
32,541,207

Land
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Furniture and equipment
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets
Property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not available
soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore
are unearned in the funds.

1,139,196

Long term Iiablilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term
liabilities at year end consist of:
Bonds payable
Bond premium, net of amortization
Bond refunding deferred charges, net of amortization
Accrued interest
Special termination benefits
OPEB Obligation
Compensated absences
Total Liabilities

Net assets ofthe Internal Service Fund

(28,039,701)
(368,545)
178,382
(471,526)
(355,172)
(10,141)
(1,015,539)
(30,082,242)

67,200

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$11,081,731

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30. 2013

Net change in Fund Balances-Total Governmental Funds

$

1,444,183

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. In the current period,
these amounts are:
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Excess of depreciation expense over capital outlay

69,804
(1,426,387)
(1,356,583)

Repayment oflong-tenn debt and related bond costs is reported
as an expenditure in governmental funds, but tl1e repayment
reduces long-tenn liabilities in the statement of net position.
In the current year, these amounts consist of:

o

Bond refunding deferred charges
Bond refunding deferred charges amortization
Bond premium amortization
Bond and note principal payments

(24,329)
57,713
2,203,797
2,237,181

Some revenues that will not be collected for several montl1S
after the District's fiscal year ends are not considered

"available" revenues and are deferred in the
governmental funds. Unearned revenues increased by this
amount this year:
Property taxes

19,275

Governmental activities report inventories, whereas
governmental funds reserve inventory

o

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
These activities consist of:
Net decrease in accrued interest
Decrease in special tennination benefits
Increase in OPEB Obligation
Decrease in compensated absences

40,654
26,184
(9,474)
20,264
77,628

Excess revenues over expenditures of Internal Service Fund

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
19.

59,660

$

2,481,344

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DlSTRlCT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET(NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30. 2013
VARlANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS
FINAL BUDGET
FAVORABLE
REVENUES
ORlGINAL
FINAL
ACTUAL
(UNFAVORABLE)
Local Sources
$ 20,680,507
$ 22,212,442
$ 20,680,507
$ 1,531,935
18,549,308
State Sources
18,522,268
18,522,268
27,040
802,784
Federal Sources
900,118
900,118
(97,334)
TOTAL REVENUES
40,102,893
40,102,893
41,564,534
1,461,641
EXPENDITURES
Instructional Services
15,908,489
16,405,374
Regular
15,908,489
(496,885)
Special
5,397,613
5,397,613
5,638,718
(241,105)
233,104
Vocational
1,800,132
1,800,132
1,567,028
Other Instructional Programs
343,381
175,720
343,381
167,661
Adult Education Programs
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
Community/Jr. College Programs
0
(207,990)
Pre-K Education Programs
207,990
0
0
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL
23,449,615
23,449,615
23,994,830
(545,215)
SERVICES
Support Services
Pupil Personnel
1,254,410
1,422,909
168,499
1,422,909
856,889
59,630
Instructional Staff
916,519
916,519
184,631
Administration
2,055,186
2,055,186
1,870,555
Pupil Health
622,759
607,555
15,204
622,759
446,174
Business
570,887
570,887
124,713
Operation and Maintenance
0
449,767
of plant services
4,401,899
4,401,899
3,952,132
441,294
Student Transportation Senrices
2,594,638
3,035,932
3,035,932
65,322
Central
40,452
40,452
(24,870)
Other Support Services
70,000
70,000
63,545
6,455
TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICES
13,136,543
13,136,543
11,711,220
1,425,323
Operation of Non738,853
Instructional Services
837,484
837,484
98,631
Capital Outlay
0
0
0
0
Debt Service

Interest

Principal
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) of Revenues
OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Refund of prior years expenditures
Proceeds fi'om bond refunding
Refund of prior years receipts
Sale afFixed Assets
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Budgetary Reserve
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Net Changes in Fund Balances
FUND BALANCES-BEGINNING, AS RESTATED
CHANGE IN INVENTORY
FUND BALANCES-ENDING

0
3,343,500
40,767,142

0
3,343,500
40,767,142

1,857
0
36,446,760

(1,857)
3,343,500
4,320,382

(664,249)

(664,249)

5,117,774

5,782,023

0
0
0
0
0
(300,000)
0

0
0
0
0
0
(300,000)
0

0
0
0
0
0
(3,577,526)
0

0
0
0
0
0
(3,277,526)
0

(300,000)

(300,000)

(3,577,526)

\964,249)

\964,249)

1,)40,248

5,032,758
0

5,032,758
0

5,032,758
0

4,U68,)09

$ 6,) IJ,OU6

$ 4,U68,)09

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmanciaI statementS.
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(3,277,526)

$1,)04,497

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30. 2013

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Taxes Receivable, Net
Interfund Receivables
Intergovernmental Receivables
Other Receivables, Net
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixtures and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total Non-current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

FOOD
SERVICE

INTERNAL
SERVICE

$ 88,540

$

TOTAL
PROPRIETARY
FUNDS

67,200

$ 155,740

0
0
24,070
0
45,031

0
0
24,070
0
45,031

157,641

224,841

67,200

357,604
(323,128)
34,476

357,604
(323,128)
34,476

0

192,117

67,200

259,317

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interfund Payables
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries & Benefits
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
OPEB Obligation
Unearned Revenues
Total Current Liabilities

109,983
0
0
0
13,849
41,203
165,035

0

109,983
0
0
0
13,849
41,203
165,035

TOTAL LIABILITIES

165,035

0

165,035

0
67,200

40,902
53,380

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

40,902
(13,820)

$ 27,082

$

67,200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of !bese financial statements.
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$

94,282

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE PROPRIETARY FUND STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
TO THE ENTITY-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30. 2013

TOTAL NET POSITION-PROPRIETARY FUNDS

$

27,082

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement
of net position are different because:
Building costs and the related accumulated depreciation
are allocated to business-type activities on the Entity-Wide
Statement of Net Position only; they are not recorded in
the Proprietary Fund.

402,949

TOTAL NET POSITION-BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

$ 430,031

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
NET POSITION-PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30. 2013

FOOD
SERVICE

INTERNAL
SERVICE

$ 561,551

$

TOTAL
PROPRIETARY
FUNDS

OPERATING REVENUE
Food service revenue
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Employee benefits
Other purchased services
Supplies
Depreciation

486,929
301,587
29,224
722,671
6,425

Total Operating Expenses

$

486,929
543,324
29,224
722,671
6,425

241,737

1,546,836

561,551

241,737

1,788,573

(985,285)

(241,737)

(1,227,022)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on investments
Operating transfer
Contributed capital
State sources
Federal sources

687
0
0
47,676
735,220

1,397
300,000

2,084
300,000
0
47,676
735,220

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

783,583

301,397

1,084,980

(201,702)

59,660

(142,042)

228,784

7,540

236,324

Operating Income (Loss)

Change in net position
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

$

27,082

$

67,200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

94,282

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
OF THE PROPRIETARY FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET POSITION-PROPRIETARY FUNDS

$ (201,702)

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement
of net position are different because:
Building costs and the related accumulated depreciation
are allocated to business-type activities on the Entity-Wide
Statement of Net Position only; they are not recorded in
the Proprietary Fund.
TOTAL CHANGE IN NET POSITION-BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

(18,283)
$ (219,985)

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30. 2013
FOOD
SERVICE

INTERNAL
SERVICE

TOTAL
PROPRIETARY
FUNDS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments for other operating expenses
Net Cash Provided by (used for) Operating Activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING SOURCES
State sources
Federal sources
Net Cash Provided by (used for) Non-capital
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Operating transfer
Earnings on investments
Net Cash Provided by (used for) Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(241,737)
0
0
(241,737)

$

568,893
(910,471)
(764,305)
0
(1,105,883)

49,166
656,572

705,738

0

705,738

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
687
687

300,000
1,397
301,397

300,000
2,084
302,084

59,660

(98,061)

(157,721)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Other adjustments
(Increase) decrease in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in OPEB Obligation
Increase (decrease) in interfund payable
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Total Adjustments
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$

$

49,166
656,572

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fixed asset purchases
Net Cash Provided by (used for) Capital and
Related Financing Activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEG. OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

568,893
(668,734)
(764,305)
0
(864,146)

246,261
88,540

$

(985,285)

7,540
67,200

(241,737)

6,425
87,105
0
(3,942)
4,609
19,600
7,342

253,801
155,740

(1,227,022)

6,425

(3,942)
4,609

0

121,139
$ (864,146)

$

$

(241,737)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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7,092
$ (1,219,930)

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30. 2013

PRIVATE PURPOSE
TRUST
SCHOLARSHIP

AGENCY

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

$

53,992
0

$134,241
0

TOTAL ASSETS

$

53,992

$ 134,241

0

134,241

LIABILITIES
Due to Students
TOTAL LIABILITIES

$134,241

$

NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Scholarships

$

53,992

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30.2013

PRIVATE PURPOSE
TRUST
SCHOLARSHIP
ADDITIONS
Investment income
Contributions
Total Additions

$

65
1,000
1,065

DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships awarded

5,725

Total Deductions

5,725

Change in net position

(4,660)

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR

58,652

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

$ 53,992

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
27.

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Tunkhannock Area School District (the District) provides a full range of educational services appropriate to
grade levels kindergarten through 12 to students living in the Townships of Eaton, Falls, Forkston, Lemon,
Mehoopany, Monroe, North Branch, Northmoreland, Overfield, Tunkhannock, Washington and Windham and
the Borough of Tunkhannock. These include regular, advanced academic, and vocational education programs,
and special education programs for gifted and handicapped children. The District has a nine-member elected
school board and an appointed Superintendent and Business Manager who oversee the daily operations of the
District.
The following is a summary of the District's significant accounting policies:

A

REPORTING ENTITY

Consistent with guidance contained in Statement No. 14, as amended by Statement 39, of the Governrnental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), The Financial Reporting Entity, the criteria used by the District to
evaluate the possible inclusion of related entities (Authorities, Boards, Councils, etc.) within its reporting entity
are financial accountability and the nature and significance of the relationship. In determining financial
accountability in a given case, the District reviews the applicability of the following criteria:
The District is fmancially accountable for:

*
*

Organizations that make up the District's legal entity.
Legally separate organizations if District officials appoint a majority of the organization's
governing body and the District is able to impose its will on the organization or if there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific fmancial benefits to, or impose specific
burdens on, the District as defined below.
Impose Its Will- If the District can significantly influence the programs, projects or activities
of, or the level of services performed or provided by the organization.
Financial Benefit or Burden - If the District (1) is entitled to the organization's resources or (2)
is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance the deficits of, or provide
support to the organization or (3) is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization.

*

Organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District. Fiscal dependency is established
ifthe organization is unable to adopt its own budget, levy taxes or set rates or charges, or
issue bonded debt without the approval ofthe District.

As defmed, there are no other related organizations which should be included in the financial statements. The
reporting entity will consist solely ofthe accounts and funds of the District.
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B.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION. FUND ACCOUNTING

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each of which constitutes a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for within a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenues and expenditures. Resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent. The following
fund types are used by the District:

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions of the District are financed. The
acquisition, use and balances of the District's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are
accounted for through governmental funds. The following are the District's governmental fund types:
GENERAL FUND
The General Fund accounts for the general operations of the District and all financial transactions not properly
accounted for in another fund.

DEBT SERVICE FUND
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources, sources for and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal and interest.
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
The Capital Projects Fund accounts is used to account for debt proceeds and other resources restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital
facilities and other capital assets.
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PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
Proprietary Fund Types account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises.
FOOD SERVICE FUND
The Food Service Fund accounts for all financial resources associated with the operations of the cafeterias.
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
The unbudgeted Internal Service Funds account for the fmancing of services provided by one department to
other departments of the District on a cost reimbursement basis. The Self-Insured Unemployment Compensation
Program is accounted for as an Internal Service Fund. Operating revenues consist of charges for insurance
services. Operating expenses consist mainly of insurance costs. AIl other revenues and expenses are reported as
non-operating.

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES (TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS)
Fiduciary Fund Types account for assets held by a governmental unit in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
other funds.
AGENCY FUND
Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the District as an agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature
and do not involve measurement or results of operations. The following is in the District's agency fund:
The Student Activity Fund accounts for programs operated and sponsored by various clubs and organizations.
TRUSTFUND
Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the School District under a trust agreement for individuals,
private organizations, or other governments are therefore not available to support the School District's own
programs. The following is in the District's trust fund:
The private purpose trust accounts for scholarship funds for the students.

C.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide fmancial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of activities.
These statements report fmancial information for the District as a whole excluding fiduciary activities such as
the trust and agency fund. The primary government and component unit are presented separately within the
financial statements with the focus on the primary government. Individual funds are not displayed but the
statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and District general revenues, from
business-type activities, generally fmanced in whole or in part with fees charged for services.
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The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly
connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities
and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program
revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (I) charges for services which
report fees and other charges to users of the District's services; (2) operating grants and contributions which
fmance annual operating activities; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition,
construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to
these program uses. Taxes and other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported
as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements
Fund fmancial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Major individual
governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate coluruns with composite columns for non-major
funds.

D.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING. AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The fmancial statements of the District are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. The District's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The government-wide, proprietary fund and component unit
fmancial statements apply Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements and Accounting Principles
Board opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.
The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within
funds). Proprietary and fiduciary fund fmancial statements also report using the same focus and basis of
accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
tax revenues, net of any uncollectible amounts, are recognized in the year for which they are levied while grants
are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met.
Governmental fund fmancial statements report using the current fmancial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available.
Available means collectible with the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The
District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year.
Property taxes levied but collected beyond 60 days after year-end, are recorded as deferred revenue to be
recognized as revenue when the taxes are collected.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond
principal and interest which are reported as expenditures in the year due.
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Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, investment
income, rent and certain miscellaneous revenues. In general, other revenues are recognized when cash is
received. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, there are essentially two
types of revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will
be paid to the District; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures incurred. In the other,
monies are virtually unrestricted and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed
compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the
susceptible to accrual criteria are met.
Operating income reported in proprietary fund fmancial statements includes revenues and expenses related to
the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges
for services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative
expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the
financial statements.
The District does not allocate any indirect expenses including depreciation.
The District applies all GASB pronouncements, as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.
E.

BUDGETARY DATA

An operating budget is adopted each year for the General Fund on a modified accrual basis of accounting. The
District utilizes the Executive Budget approach to budgetary control. This approach requires the Superintendent,
together with the Business Office, to prepare and submit a plan of financial operation to the School Board.
F.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate interfund receivables and payable accounts. Any
outstanding amounts (reported in "due from" asset accounts) are considered "available spendable resources". As
of June 30, 2013 the outstanding interfund balance was $109,983.
G.

CASH AND CASH EOUNALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, certificates of deposit and liquid asset funds, are all carried at cost,
which approximates fair value.
H.

TAXES RECEIVABLE AND UNEARNED TAX REVENUES

The portion of delinquent real estate taxes receivable that is expected to be received within 60 days of June 30 is
recorded as revenue in the current year. The remaining amount of those and other tax receivables is recorded as
unearned tax revenues.
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I.

INVENTORIES AND PREPAID EXPENSES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market except for donated inventories,
which are valued at fair market value as determined by the U.S. Department of Agriculture at the date of
donation. Textbooks and instructional and custodial supplies are charged to expense upon acquisition.
Prepaid expenses represent the cost of goods and services that has been paid for in advance of receipt. The
consumption method is used to account for prepaid expenses in all fund types. Under the consumption method,
prepaid expenses are recorded as assets and expended or expensed as the goods or services are received.
Inventories and prepaid expenses in the General Fund are reported as a nonspendable fund balance, which
indicates that the amounts do not represent spendable resources and that they are unavailable for appropriation.

J.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

The District's property, plant and equipment with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost
and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary fund capital assets are
also reported in their fund fmancial statements. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The
District generally capitalizes assets with a cost of $1 0,000 or more as purchase and construction outlays occur.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives
are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are
disposed, the cost and applicable gain or loss is recorded in operations. Estimated useful lives, in years, for
depreciable assets are generaIly as follows:
15-40 years
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements
15-40 years
5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures & equipment
K.

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide fmancial
statements.
In general, payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely marmer and in full from
current fmancial resources, are reported as obligations of the governmental funds. However, compensated
absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund fmancial statements
only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current fiscal year. The capital leases, and other longterm obligations that will be paid from governmental funds are not recognized as a liability in the fund financial
statements when due.
L.

LIABILITY FOR FUTURE COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District's collective bargaining agreements with its professional and support employees specifY the sick
leave and vacation leave policies. Administrative personnel, while not party to these agreements, are provided
similar benefits. The agreements generally provide for payment of accumulated sick leave, at retirement, based
upon years of service and days accumulated. The rate paid varies by position. Vacation leave is available only to
administrative and twelve month support employees. Vacation pay is earned in the year in which the service has
been performed. Employees are entitled to accrue an armual designated number of vacation days, which carry
over from year to year.
At June 30,2013 the District had a compensated absence liability of$I,015,539.
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M.

PENSION PLAN

Substantially all full-time and part-time employees ofthe District participates in a cost-sharing multiple
employer defmed pension plan. The District recognizes annual pension expenditures or expenses equal to its
contractually required contributions, subject to the modified accrual basis of accounting in governmental funds.
(That is, if contributions from governmental funds are required but not made, the difference would not be
reported as an expenditure until payable with expendable, available fmancial resources.) The District made all
required contributions for the year ended June 30, 2013 and has recognized them as expenditures and expenses
in the governmental and proprietary funds, respectively.
N.

UNEARNED REVENUES

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria has been satisfied. On
governmental fund financial statements the unearned revenues represent delinquent taxes receivable not
collected within 60 days subsequent to the District's year-end. It is expected that these receivables will be
collected and included in revenues of future fiscal years.
O.

NET POSITION

Net position represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
School District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments.
The School District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.
P.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Q.

SELF-INSURANCE

The District is self-insured for unemployment compensation claims. The aggregate annual claims amounted to
$241,737. The District accounts for its self-insurance activity in its Internal Service Fund.
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R.

FUND BALANCES

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type DefInitions" was implemented during fIscal year 20 II. The statement establishes fund balance
classifIcations that comprise hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe
constraints imposed on the use of the resonrces reported in governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund
balance classifIcations of reserved, designated, and unreservedlundesignated were replaced with fIve new
classifIcations: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.
In the governmental fund fInancial statements, reservations of fund balance are reported for amounts not
available for appropriation or legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specifIc purpose. Fund balances
are classifIed as follows:

Nonspendable- Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either in a) nonspendable form or b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained in tact.
Restricted- Amounts which can be spent only for specifIc purposes because of state and federal laws, or
externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.
Committed- Amounts which can be spent only for specifIc purposes determined by the Board of Education's
formal action through a resolution.
Assigned- Amounts which can be spent only for specifIc purposes determined by a committee or individual
authorized by the Board of Education.
Unassigned- All amounts not included in other spendable classifIcations.

S.

ALLOCATION OF INDIRECT EXPENSES

The District does not allocate any indirect expenses including depreciation.
T.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In the fIscal year ended June 30,2009, the School District adopted Statement of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board ("GASB"), Statement No. 45, "Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment BenefIts Other Than Pensions" ("GASB 45"). GASB 45 requires the School District to
recognize a liability for the actuarial determined net other post -employment benefIts obligation "OPEB" in the
statement of net assets. The net OPEB liability in the year of adoption is calculated as the annual OPEB cost,
less contributions made during the year. This statement also requires calculation and disclosnre of the actuarial
accrued liability "AAL", the plan assets (if any), and the funded status of the AAL.
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Changes to the net OPEB will be recognized through a change in unrestricted net assets based on the annual
OPEB cost, interest on the net OPEB, and adjustments to the ARC. The annual OPEB cost includes
amortization of the unfunded AAL, which is being amortized using level dollar method over a 14 year period,
beginning July I, 2012

U.

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The adoption of this pronouncement has no material effect on
the financial statements.
The District implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. See
Note 14 for additional infonnation.

V.

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported
as Asset and Liabilities (GASB 65). Under GASB 65, in addition to liabilities the statement offmancial
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents a decrease in net position or fund balance that
applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then. The
District has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first is the unamortized premium on debt
issuance reported in the government-wide fmancial statement of net position. An unamortized premium results
from the difference between the face value of a bond and the price above this face value, at which the bond has
been issued. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding
debt. The second is the unavailable property tax revenue reported in the balance sheet of the governmental
funds financial statements. Unavailable property tax revenue represents property taxes not collected (delinquent
taxes) within 60 days subsequent to the District's year-end. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow
of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

W.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported
as Asset and Liabilities (GASB 65). Under GASB 65, in addition to assets the statement of financial position
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate fmancial statement
element, deferred ouflows of resources, represents a increase in net position or fund balance that applies to a
future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as an ouflow of resources (expenditure) until then. The
District has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on refunding of debt
reported in the government-wide financial statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results
from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is
deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refimding debt.
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NOTE? - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS
The District's investment policy is in accordance with the Public School Code of 1949, Section 440.1, which
permits funds to be temporarily invested in: (1) United States Treasury bills, (2) short-term obligations ofthe
United States government or its agencies or instrumentalities, (3) deposits in savings or time accounts, or share
accounts of institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the National Credit Union
Share Insurance Fund to the extent such accounts are so insured and, for any amounts above the insured
maximum provided that approved collateral as provided by law therefore shall be pledged by the depository, (4)
obligations of the United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States of America, of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth, or any political subdivision ofthe
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of
the political subdivision, and (5) shares of certain investment companies registered under the Investment
Companies Act of 1940 and the Securities Act of 1933 which invest only in instruments listed in (1) - (4) listed
above, maintain a constant per share net asset value and are rated in the highest category by a nationally
recognized rating agency.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to
it. At June 30,2013, the bank balance of the District's deposits with financial institutions, including cash
equivalents, was $12,421,006 of which, $12,171,006 was exposed to custodial credit risk. $12,171,006 of the
bank balance was uninsured but was collateralized by securities pledged by the financial institutions for such
funds but not in the District's name in accordance with the collateralization provisions of Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Act 72 of 1971, as amended.
Interest Rate Risk:
The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits maturities in certain investments as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
Credit Risk:
The District does have an investment policy that would limit its investment choices to certain credit ratings.
Concentration of Credit Risk:
The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in anyone issuer.

NOTE 3 - TAXES RECEIVABLE
Real estate taxes and taxpayer-assessed taxes are recognized as revenue when available on the modified accrual
basis, which means collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of
the current period. Such time thereafter shall not exceed sixty days.
The government-wide financial statements recognize real estate tax revenue when the taxes are levied.
Estimated collectible delinquent taxes at June 30,2013 are as follows:
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OUTSTANIDNG
BALANCE
Real estate taxes

ESTIMATED
UNCOLLECTIBLE
$

ll.117464

ESTIMATED
COLLECTIBLE

-0-

.U.717464

The tax on real estate, as levied by the Board, was 68.1 mills ($ 68.10 per $1,000 of assessed valuation) for
fiscal 2013. Assessed valuations of property are determined by Wyoming County and the elected tax collectors
are responsible for collection. The schedule for real estate taxes levied for each fiscal year is as follows:
-Levy Date
-2% Discount Period
-Face Payment Period
-10% Penalty Period
-Lien Date

August 1
August 1 - September 30
October 1 - November 30
December 1 - December 31
January 1

NOTE 4 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS
A summary of the receivables due from other governments at June 30, 2013 is as follows:
GOVERNMENTAL
Federal grants
State subsidies
Other
Total Due from Other Governments

PROPRIETARY

TOTAL

$ 214,350
482,392
308.574

$ 22,469
1,601
-0-

$ 236,819
483,993
308.574

$1.0053Ui

$ 24.Q.TIL

$.1,Q.22,386

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of changes in the capital assets is as follows:
BALANCE
2012
Governmental activities:
Land
Land improvements
Buildiugs & building improvements
Furniture & equipment
Total Historical Cost
LESS: Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements
Buildings & building improvements
Furniture & equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

326,860
1,825,845
54,498,237
4.118.095

$

ADDITIONS
$

-0-045,207
24,597

BALANCE
2013
326,860
1,825,845
54,543,444
4.142.692

$

60.769.037

69.804

60,838,841

1,464,444
22,243,548
3.163.255
26.871.247

89,594
1,170,709
166.084
(1.426.387)

1,554,038
23,414,257
3,329,339
28.297.634

.Q ,35.6..583)

32.5.4L2Jl1

Governmental Activities, net

38.

(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED)
(NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS-CONTINUED)

Business-type activities:
Buildings & improvements
Furniture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Business-type Activities, net

$

-0-

836,205
357,604
(731,675)

( 24.709)

836,205
357,604
(756.384)

467~

Ll24.7091

~37425

-0-

Depreciation expense of$I,426,387 was charged to governmental activities as unallocated depreciation.

NOTE 6 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE
During its June 30, 2003 fiscal year, the District issued $8,050,000 of general obligation bonds (Series 2003) to
refmance the 2000 Bond Issue. The interest rates on the 2003 Bond Issue range from 2.00% to 4.15%, with final
payment due January 15, 2019. 1bis issue was refunded through the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series
of201O.
During its June 30, 2005 fiscal year, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005, in the principal
amount of $23,480,000. The proceeds of the issue are being used to refinance the 1998 and 2001 bond issue.
The interest rates on the 2005 Bond Issue range from 3.00% to 5.00% with final payment due July 15, 2019.
During its June 30, 2005 fiscal year, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005A, in the
principal amount of$9, I 00,000. The proceeds of the issue are being used to finance improvements to the
Roslund Elementary and Mill City Elementary Schools, and pay certain costs and expenses related to the
issuance of the bonds. The interest rates on the 2005A Bond Issue range from 2.635% to 4.375% with final
payment due January 15, 2023. The issue was refunded through issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series
of2011,
During its June 30, 2011 fiscal year, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of2010, in the
principal amount of$6,635,000. The proceeds of the issue were used to currently refund the District's
outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2003. The interest rates on the 20 I 0 Bond Issue range from
1.00% to 3.15%.
During its June 30, 2012 fiscal year, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of2011, in the
principal amount of $8,815,000. The proceeds of the issue were used to currently refund the District's
outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series A of2005. The interest rates on the 2011 Bond Issue range from
1.00% to 3.625% with fmal payment due January 2023.
During its June 30, 2012 fiscal year, the District issued General Obligation Note, Series of2011, in the principal
amount of $1,185,000. The proceeds of the issue were used to fund various renovations, improvements and
enhancements to the District's facilities. The interest rate on the 2011 Note is fixed at 3.85% with final payment
due September 2026.
During its June 30,2012 fiscal year, the District issued General Obligation Note, Series of2012, in the principal
amount of $615,000. The proceeds of the issue were used to fund various renovations, improvements and
enhancements to the District's facilities. The interest rate on the 2012 Note is fixed at 3.85% with final payment
due September 2026.
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The following summarizes the changes in bonds and notes payable in 2013:
BALANCE
JULY 1. 2012

INCREASES

DECREASES

BALANCE
JUNE 30. 2013

Series of 2005
Series of20 10
Series of 20 11
Series of 2011 Note
Series of2012 Note

$13,645,000
6,040,000
8,815,000
1,140,529
602.969

$

-0-0-0-0-0-

$ C 1,715,000)
C 390,000)
5,000)
C
C 61,375)
C 32.422)

$ 11 ,930,000
5,650,000
8,810,000
1,079,154
570.547

TOTAL

$3Q.243428

$

-Q-

$( 2.2Q3,:Z5Q)

$2~,Q32

:ZQ 1

Total interest paid on these bonds and notes in 2013 was $1,136,580. No interest is reported as a direct expense
in the statement of activities.
The following snmmarizes the District's futnre debt service requirements on these bonds and notes as of June
30,2013:
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019-2023
2024 - 2027
TOTAL

PRINCIPAL

INTEREST

2,427,348
2,626,163
2,720,127
2,834,247
2,938,527
14,007,961
485.328

$ 1,040,270
948,987
849,998
747,988
634,270
1,411,611
31.786

$

$ 28 Q32 ..Nl

$ 5664.2l.Q

L33 :ZQ4.6lL

$

TOTAL
3,467,618
3,575,150
3,570,125
3,582,235
3,572,797
15,419,572
517.114

NOTE 7 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Accrued Sick Pay and Vacation Leave
Accumulated sick pay payable upon retirement of employees under the Public School Employees Retirement System is a
long-term liability of the School District and is reported in the government-wide financial statements. Under the terms of
the District's various collective bargaining agreements with its employees, retiring employees are entitled to receive a per
diem amount for their accumulated unused sick days. Accrued sick pay of $790,869 as reflected in these financial
statements represents the amount that would have been payable under the terms of the various collective bargaining
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agreements computed as if all School District employees had retired effective June 30, 2013. Furthermore, any retired
administrative or support staff employee with unused vacation time is also entitled to receive compensation for such time
at their current salary base. As a result, accrued vacation pay is reflected in these [mancial statements in the amount of
$141,068 for administrative and support staff using the same criteria as described above.
Accrued Sabbatical Leave
Sabbatical leave payable is comprised of amounts due under terms of the School District's collective bargaining
agreements. The amount comprising the liability for the eligible period of medical sabbatical leave for each employee is
based on one-half of their normal compensation plus payroll taxes and a cost for retirement benefits which a based on
100% of normal compensation. The liability for any employees taking a sabbatical leave for health or medical reasons
within the ensuing year is reflected as a liability in the General Fund. The portion of the liability reported in the
government-wide financial statements is based on a estimate by the School District of the number ofremaining qualif'ying
employees who will potentially take a sabbatical leave for the same reasons prior to retirement. The balance at June 30,
2013 was $83,602.

The following summarizes the changes in compensated absences in 2013:
Balance, July I, 2012
Net decrease
Balance, June 30, 2013
LESS: Current portion
Long-Term Compensated Absences

$ 1,035,803
( 20.264)

1,015,539
253,885
Lli1654

The District normally pays its compensated absences from the General Fund.

NOTE8-RETmEMENTPLAN
School districts in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania participate in a State administered pension
program established under legislative authority, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public
employee retirement system ("PERS"). Under tins program, contributions are made by each of three
parties - the school district, the Commonwealth and the employee. Substantially all the School District's fulltime employees, part-time employees salaried over eighty days and hourly employees working more than five
hundred hours per year participate in the program. Currently, each party to the program contributes a fixed
percentage of employees' gross earnings.
The pension program is wholly administered, in Pennsylvania, by the statewide, autonomous Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Public School Employees Retirement System ("TIle System") with offices in Harrisburg,
Pennsylvania. The School District has no responsibility or authority for the operation and administration of the
pension program, nor has it any related liability except for the current contribution requirements.
The System issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes fmancial statements and required
supplementary information for the plan. A copy of ti,e report may be obtained by written request to Diane J.
Wert, Office of Financial Management & Budget, Public School Employees Retirement System, 5 N. 5"' Street,
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1905. The report is also available in the publications section of the PSERS site on the
Internet.
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A.

Benefits

Significant Amendments to the System were made in the 1975 revision ofthe PA Public School Employee
Retirement Code ("the Code") by the PA General Assembly. Under the provisions of the Code, members are
eligible for monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62; (b) age 60 and 30 or more years of service or;
(c) 35 or more years of service regardless of age.
Such benefits are generally equal to two and one-half percent of the member's fmal average salary (as defmed)
multiplied by the number of years of credited service. After completion of 5 years of service, a member's right to
the defmed benefit is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. Under certain features of the System,
active members may purchase credit for types of prior educational or military service on a lump-sum or
installment purchase basis.
In addition to regular retirement benefits, the System also provides for disability retirement benefits and death
benefits. Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of eligible
service. Such benefits are equal to two and one-half percent of the member's final average salary (as defined)
multiplied by the number of years of credited service, but not less than one third of such salary (unless the
participant would have less than 16.67 years of credited service had the participant worked until superarmuation
age, in which case the participant receives two percent of final average salary times the number of years of
service that would have been credited had the participant worked until superarmuation age), nor greater than the
benefit the member would have had at superarmuation retirement age.
Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 or who has at least 10
years of eligible service. Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit which would have been effective
if the member had retired on the day before death.
Members with credited service in the State Employees' Retirement System may elect to transfer such service to
the Public School Employees' Retirement System upon commencement of employment in the public school
system. Similarly, a member with credited service in the System may transfer such service to the State
Employees' Retirement System upon becoming a member of that system.
Upon termination of a member's employment in the public school sector, the member's accumulated
contribution plus interest are refundable from the Member's Savings Account.
A health insurance premium assistance program was established effective July I, 1991 for all eligible
armuitants, as defmed in the Code, who elect to participate. Under this provision, an employer contribution rate
for premium assistance was established for the fiscal year that began July I, 1991 in order to provide reserves in
the Health Insurance Account as of June 30, 1992 which are sufficient for the payment of premium assistance
for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1992. Effective July 1, 1992, participating eligible armuitants are to receive
premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $1 00 per month, or the actual monthly premium.
B.

Contributions

The contribution policy is set by Code and requires contributions by active members, employers and the
Commonwealth. The rate of contribution for most active members was set by law at 5.25 percent of the
member's compensation. For members joining the System on or after July 22, 1983, the rate of contribution is
6.25 percent. Member contributions - Active or inactive members ofPSERS as of July 1, 2001 may elect a new
membership class "TD" to receive a higher benefit formula. Upon qualifYing and filing appropriate election
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forms, class TD members will make employee contributions of 6.50% (if currently contributing 5.25%) or
7.50% (if currently contributing 6.25%) effective January 1. 200 7 , provided the member continues as an active
member after this date. Effective July I, 20 II, all new members automatically become class TE members unless
class TF membership is elected. The contribution rate for class TE members is 7.5%; class TF members
contribute 10.3%. Members not making the election will continue to contribute at rates identified in
"Contribution rates" above. The contributions required of employers and the Commonwealth are based upon an
actuarial valuation, using the "entry age normal" method, computed as a percentage of the total compensation of
all active members during the period for which the amount is determined.
The combined amounts required from the employer and Commonwealth for the year ended June 30, 2013 were
12.36 percent which is comprised of 11.5 percent for pension benefits and .86 percent for health insurance
premium assistance.
The Tunkhannock Area School District contributed $2,071,484, $1,668,506, and $1,153,896, respectively, for
the years ended June 30, 20]3, 2012, and 2011.

NOTE 9 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The District participates in both state and federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The District is potentially liable for any
expenditure which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware
of any material items of non-compliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures.
The District is involved, from time to time, in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion of the District, the ultimate disposition of any matters outstanding at June 30, 2013 will
not have a material effect on the District's financial position.

NOTE 10-RISKMANAGEMENT
Other Risks
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District has purchased various insurance policies to
safeguard the assets of the District from risk of loss. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from
the prior year. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage in the current year, or the past three
years.
In September 1999 the District joined with fourteen other Pennsylvania public school entities within
Northeastern Pennsylvania to form the Northeast Pennsylvania School Districts Health Trust. The Trust is a
public entity risk pool designed to provide health and welfare benefits and reimbursement and/or to provide
stop-loss coverage for self-funded benefits, and/or to provide death and/or disability benefits through the life or
disability insurance on the life of any participant or group coverage for participants. The Trust was established
for the sole exclusive benefit of the employees of the member public school entities.

The Trust Agreement permits members to withdraw from the Trust under terms as specified in the agreement
withdrawing members are required to pay the Trust Fund all required contributions for claims incurred on behalf
of participants and beneficiaries in the Trust Fund who are employees of the withdrawing public school entity.
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NOTE II - INTERNAL BALANCES, INTERFUND BALANCES, AND TRANSFERS

The following summarizes the interfund transfers in 2013:

General

TRANSFERS IN

$ -0-

TRANSFERS OUT

(3.577.526)

TOTAL

$(357U2fil

Debt
Service

Internal
Service

$ 3,277 ,526 $ 300,000
-0-

-0-

$ 3,277 5212 $ 3QQ QOQ

Capital
Projects

$

-0-

TOTAL

$ 3,577,526

-0~

(3,577.526)
$

-Q-

The General Fund transferred funds to the Debt Service Fund to pay long-term debt as it came due and the
Internal Service Fund to pay unemployment compensation claims,

NOTE 12 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
PLAN DESCRIPTION
The District's collective bargaining agreements with its employees provides for post-employment health
insurance benefits for eligible employees who retire with a specified level of service to the District and with
PSERS, Administrators, while not party to the contract, are provided similar benefits, The District is providing
coverage from the date of retirement until the individual becomes eligible for the federal government health
insurance program. The cost of such medical, prescription drug, vision and dental coverage for retirees and
spouses is determined by the contract provisions at the time of retirement. The plan provides post-retirement
medical, prescription drug, and dental benefits. The plan is unfounded and no fmancial report is prepared.
These benefits are accounted for in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other Titan Pensions. Retired employees who are
eligible under the above requirements and choose to participate in the medical plan pay 100% of the composite
rate cost of such coverage.
FUNDING POLICY
The contribution requirements of plan members and the School District are established and may be amended by
the School Board. The plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, i.e., premiums are paid annually to fund the
health care benefits provided to current retirees. Retiree contribution rates and amounts vary depending on
classification and years of service with the School District. The School District paid premiums of
approximately $808,744 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.
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ANNUAL OPEB COST AND NET OPEB OBLIGATION
The School District's annual other post-employment benefit )OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters ofGASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over
a period not to exceed 30 years.
The following show the components of the School District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the School District's net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

$1,184,567
446
(969)
1.184.044

Annual OPEB cost (expense)

1,184,044
(1,169.961)

Contributions made
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation

14,083
9.907

Net OPEB obligation at July I, 2012
Net OPEB obligation at June 30, 2013

...-.$.....:u.22ll

The School District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
And the net OPEB obligation for June 30,2013 were as follows:

FISCAL YEAR ENDED
June 30, 2013

ANNUAL
OPEB
COST
$1.184044
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PERCENTAGE
OF ANNUAL
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CONTRIBUTED

NETOPEB
OBLIGATION
$23,990
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FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS
The funded status of the plans as of July I, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability
Actuarial value of plan assets

$8,439,195

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)

$Jl,439

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assetsfUAAL

I~

0%

Covered payroll
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

53.39%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples included assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Actuarial amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the School District are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS
The calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the School District's Retirement
Benefits plan at the time of the valuation. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not
explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations in the future. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the efforts of short-term volatility
in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.
In the July I, 2012, actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal Method was used, Under the Entry Age Normal
Cost Method, the Normal Cost is the present value of benefits allocated to the year following the valuation date.
Benefits are allocated on a level basis over the earnings of an individual between the date of hire and the
assumed retirement age. 11,e Accrued Liability as ofthe valuation date is the excess ofthe present value of
future benefits over the present value of future Normal Cost. The Unfunded Accrued Liability is the excess of
the Accrued Liability over the Actuarial Value of Assets. Actuarial gains and losses serve to reduce or increase
the Unfunded Accrued Liability.

The actuarial assumptions included a 4.5% investment rate ofretum, which is the expected rate to be earned on
the School District's deposits and investments, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.5% initially,
reduced by .5% annually to a rate of 5.3% in 2017 to 4.2% in 2089 and later. UAAL is being amortized as a
level percentage of payroll over a fourteen year period on an open basis.
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NOTE 13 - SPECIAL TERMINATION BENEFITS
Early retirement incentive pertains to employees who have attained 25 years of more of service. Payments will
be in one lump sum at retirement or in annual payments for five years from the date of their retirement. Shown
below is a table of the amount that will be paid by the School District based on the number of years of service, to
a teacher who elected early retirement:
Years of Service
25 to 30 years
31 years
32 years
33 years
34 years
35 years
36 years
37 years

Amount
$10,000
9,000
8,000
7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000

Twenty-three retirees are receiving this benefit. The District used a discount rate of3.25% to estimate the effect
of making the cash payments over multiple periods.
The following summarizes the changes in special termination benefits in 2013:
Balance @ July 1, 2012
Net Decrease

$ 388,465
( 24,400)

Ba1ance@June30, 2013
Less: Unamortized discount
Present value of special termination benefits
Less: Current portion
Long-Term portion of special termination benefits

$ 364,065
8.893
355,172
221,558
$ L11.6.l.4

The District normally pays special termination benefits from the General Fund.

NOTE 14-CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
As stated in Note I, effective July 1, 2012, the School District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, and Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, to be in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. TIle statements implemented Concepts Statement 4
defming the five elements of the statement of financial position as: assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position. The statements also reclassified certain existing assets
and liabilities to the new categories including reclassifications to outflows of resources resulting in a restatement
of the School District's beginning net position for the governmental activities of $395,095. This amount
represents bond issue costs, net of amortization as of June 30, 2012 that no longer meets the definition of an
asset.
Net position, as originally stated, June 30, 2012
Less unamortized bond issue costs
Net position, as restated, June 30,2012

$ 9,640,498
( 395.095)

$_224S.:tQ3.
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NOTE 15 -SUBSEOUENT EVENT
A labor grievance was filed by the Tunkhannock Area Education Association relating to the District's decision
to furlough thirty two (32) professional employees. An arbitration hearing was held in November 2012 on the
matter. In May 2013, the arbitrator issued an award against the District in favor ofthe professional employees.
The District was ordered to reinstate all of the furloughed employees to their prior positions. In addition, the
District was ordered to make these employees whole for any loss of payor benefits resulting from the furloughs.
In June 2013, the District filed a Petition to Vacate or Correct that Arbitration Award. In July 2013 the Petition
was denied by the Court. The District estimates that the award will result in $1,460,859 of payroll and benefit
costs related to the 2012-2013 fiscal year. The District has accrued a liability as of June 30, 2013 for this
amount. Additonally, the District estimates that the award will result in approximately $2,000,000 in payroll
and benefit costs related to the 2013-14 fiscal year and those costs will be recognized in that year.
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TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30. '013
VARIANCE
2013
FAVORABLE
SCHEDULE
(UNFAVORABLEj
BUDGET
ACTUAL
REVENUES
Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources
Interfund transfers
Refund of prior year expenditures
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
1100-INSTRUCTIONRegular Programs
1200-INSTRUCTIONSpecial Programs
1300-VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
1400-0THER INSTRUCTIONAL
PROGRAMS-E/S
1600-INSTRUCTION-ADULT
EDUCATION PROGRAMS
1700-COMMUNITY I JR COLLEGE
EDUCATION PROGRAMS
1800-INSTRUCTION-PRE-K
EDUCATION PROGRAMS
2100-SUPPORT SERVICES
Pupil Personnel
2200-SUPPORT SERVICES
Instructional Staff
2300-SUPPORT SERVICES
Administration
2400-SUPPORT SERVICES
Pupil Health
2500-SUPPORT SERVICES

Business

EXHIBIT A
2012
ACTUAL

I
2
3

$20,680,507
18,522,268
900,118
0
0
40,102,893

$ 22,212,442
18,549,308
802,784
0
0
41,564,534

$1,531,935
27,040
(97,334)
0
0
1,461,641

$ 20,982,074
18,732,571
1,082,480
0
0
40,797,125

4

15,908,489

16,405,374

(496,885)

16,470,815

5
6

5,397,613
1,800,132

5,638,718
1,567,028

(241,105)
233,104

5,570,591
1,858,619

7

343,381

175,720

167,661

185,643

8

0

0

0

5,580

9

0

0

0

0

10

0

207,990

11

1,422,909

1,254,410

168,499

1,214,035

12

916,519

856,889

59,630

858,868

13

2,055,186

1,870,555

184,631

1,752,123

14

622,759

607,555

15,204

582,759

15

570,887

446,174

124,713

563,156

16

4,401,899

3,952,132

449,767

3,759,699

17

3,035,932

2,594,638

441,294

2,972,742

18

40,452

65,322

(24,870)

112,511

19

70,000

63,545

6,455

68,497

20
21

752,316
85,168

685,964
52,889

66,352
32,279

723,314
55,891

22
23
24
25

0
3,343,500
300,000
0
41,067,142

0
1,857
3,577,526
0
40,024,286

(207,990)

207,650

2600-SUPPORT SERVICES

Operation and Maintenance
of plant services
2700-SUPPORT SERVICES
Student Transportation Services
2800-SUPPORT SERVICES
Central
2900-SUPPORT SERVICES
Other Support Services
3200-0PERATION OF NON INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICESSTUDENT ACTIVITIES
3300-COMMUNITY SERVICES
4000-FACILITIES ACQUISITION,
CONSTRUCTION & IMPROVEMENT SERVICES
5100-DEBT SERVICE
5200-FUNDS TRANSFER
5900-BUDGETARY RESERVE

0
3,341,643
(3,277,526)
0
1,042,856

$ (964,249) $ 1,540,248
$1,304,497
EXCESS (EXPENDITURES) OVER REVENUES
FUND BALANCES-BEGINNING
5,032,758
0
CHANGE IN INVENTORY
FUND BALANCES-ENDING
$ 6,573,006
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tmancIaJ statements.
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0

263
3,324,551

0
40,287,307
$

309,818
4,518,485
4,455

$

5,032,758

SCHEDULE 1

2013
ACTUAL

BUDGET
REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES
Current real estate taxes
Public utility realty tax
Payments in lieu oftaxes
Per capita-Section 679
Per capita-Act 511
Occupation tax
Earned income tax
Real estate transfer taxes
Delinquent taxes
Earnings on investments
Rentals
Tuition
Receipts from other LEAs
Miscellaneous

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
·UNF AVORABLE}

$ 16,990,013
25,325
35,360
40,096
40,096
45,000
1,500,000
140,000
1,260,000
100,000
20,000
28,500
301,117
155,000

$

17,020,406
25,607
38,200
38,955
38,955
54,768
1,912,674
259,392
1,431,756
137,701
25,805
28,273
287,979
911,971

$

$ 20,680,507

$

22,212,442

$

30,393
282
2,840
(1,141)
(1,141)
9,768
412,674
119,392
171,756
37,701
5,805
(227)
(13,138)
756,971
1,531,935

2012
ACTUAL
$

16,256,902
25,326
36,207
39,654
39,654
48,235
1,609,191
176,315
1,513,776
121,086
35,726
26,429
305,582
747,991

$

20,982,074

SCHEDULE 2
REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES
Basic instructional subsidy
Section 1305 & 1306
Homebound instruction
Vocational education
Migratory children
Special education of exceptional
pupils
Education assistance program
Transportation
Rentals and sinking fund payments
Health services
Pre-K counts
Extra grants
Revenue for social security
Revenue for retirement
PA accountability
Charter school
Property tax relief

$ 10,558,394
100,000
0
85,000
0

$

1,679,815
0
2,032,677
839,000
50,000
0
0
882,790
1,151,000
0
0
1,143,592
$ 18,522,268

10,558,183
152,717
0
87,019
160

$

1,679,817
0
1,959,898
839,722
50,396
190,493
0
651,940
1,065,310
170,061
0
1,143,592
$

18,549,308

$

(211)
52,717
0
2,019
160
0
2
0
(72,779)
722
396
190,493
0
(230,850)
(85,690)
170,061
0
0

$

27,040

$

10,558,395
223,254
0
105,526
0
1,679,829
0
1,984,300
837,274
53,584
241,997
120,291
734,901
881,207
170,061
0
1,141,952
18,732,571

SCHEDULE 3
REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES
Chapter I
$
Title II
Vocational education
Title V
Medical assistance
ARRA
Other grants

489,881
168,172
35,065
0
207,000
0
0

$

469,138
165,910
35,305
0
120,952
11,479
0

$

(20,743)
(2,262)
240
0
(86,048)
11,479
0

$

477,682
218,343
17,478
0
329,031
39,430
516

$

900,118

$

802,784

$

(97,334)

$

1,082,480

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2013
ACTUAL

BUDGET

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
'UNFAVORABLEl

2012
ACTUAL
SCHEDULE 4

11 OO-INSTRUCTION-REGULAR PROGRAMS
$ 9,087,439
Salaries
Employee benefits
5,263,467
Purchased professional and
31,500
technical services
113,700
Purchased property services
Other purchased services
401,912
634,453
Supplies
372,293
Property
Other objects
3,725
$ 15,908,489

$

9,939,061
5,201,841

$

20,856
44,195
567,865
530,590
98,761
2,205
$

16,405,374

(851,622)
61,626

$

38,117
75,440
406,470
476,580
162,621
2,258

10,644
69,505
(165,953)
103,863
273,532
1,520
$

(496,885)

10,475,859
4,833,470

$

16,470,815

SCHEDULE 5
1200-INSTRUCTION-SPECIAL PROGRAMS
$ 2,579,896
Salaries
1,636,223
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and
789,617
technical services
Purchased property services
600
Other purchased services
347,801
41,624
Supplies
0
Property
1,852
Other objects
$ 5,397,613

$

2,457,032
1,687,139

$

5,638,718

$

(46,641)
410
(294,294)
26,620
(37)
889

836,258
190
642,095
15,004
37
963
$

122,864
(50,916)

$

(241,105)

2,793,002
1,521,476
669,788
151
484,248
60,734
39,768
1,424

$

5,570,591

SCHEDULE 6
1300-VOCATIONAL EDUCATION PROGRAMS
$
967,169
Salaries
Employee benefits
422,787
Purchased professional and
technical services
0
Purchased property services
14,230
228,800
Other purchased services
Supplies
131,746
33,575
Property
1,825
Other objects
$

1,800,132

$

884,471
348,026

$

0
8,179
201,113
94,490
30,589
160
$

1,567,028

82,698
74,761

$

0
11,924
181,407
126,434
23,019
699

0
6,051
27,687
37,256
2,986
1,665
$

233,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these [mancial statements.
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1,146,008
369,128

$

1,858,619

2013
ACTUAL

BUDGET

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
'UNFAVORABLE)

2012
ACTUAL

SCHEDULE 7
1400-0THER INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS-E/S
Salaries
53,040
$
Employee benefits
10,850
Purchased professional and
276,000
technical services
Purchased property services
0
Other purchased services
237
Supplies
3,254
Property
0
Other objects
0
$

343,381

$

39,807
10,736

$

114,684
0
8,876
1,617
0
0
$

175,720

13,233
114

$

161,316
0
(8,639)
1,637
0
0
$

167,661

48,770
7,939
86,689
0
2,634
39,611
0
0

$

185,643

SCHEDULE 8
1600-INSTRUCTION-ADULT
EDUCATION PROGRAMS

$

$

$

$

5,580

SCHEDULE 9
1700-COMMUNITY I JR COLLEGE
EDUCATION PROGRAMS

$

$

$

$

SCHEDULE 10
1800-lNSTRUCTION-PRE-K
EDUCATION PROGRAMS

$

$

207,990

$

(207,990)

$

207,650

TOTAL INSTRUCTION

$ 23,449,615

$

23,994,830

$

(545,215)

$

24,298,898

SCHEDULE II
2100-SUPPORT SERVICES-PUPIL PERSONNEL
Salaries
$
926,074
Employee benefits
410,384
Purchased professional and
technical services
0
Purchased property services
4,750
28,004
Other purchased services
Supplies
42,997
Property
8,250
Other objects
2,450
$

1,422,909

$

816,495
385,140

$

2,000
2,804
15,888
30,809
95
1,179
$

1,254,410

109,579
25,244

$

(2,000)
1,946
12,116
12,188
8,155
1,271
$

168,499

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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827,305
338,225
3,135
2,350
15,288
26,555
262
915

$

1,214,035

2013
ACTUAL

BUDGET

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
'UNFAVORABLE)

2012
ACTUAL

SCHEDULE 12
2200-SUPPORT SERVICES-INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
Salaries
$
572,879
$
204,375
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and
25,000
technical services
8,600
Purchased property services
9,864
Other purchased services
86,971
Supplies
8,830
Property
Other objects
0
$

916,519

$

384,256
189,683

$

5,918
9,664
8,271
112,946
146,051
100
856,889

188,623
14,692

$

21,482
13,162
2,266
108,613
36,088
297

19,082
(1,064)
1,593
(25,975)
(137,221)
(100)
$

59,630

497,848
179,112

$

858,868

SCHEDULE 13
2300-SUPPORT SERVICES-ADMINISTRATIVE
$ 1,073,131
Salaries
496,209
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and
290,400
technical services
Purchased property services
30,275
93,511
Other purchased services
36,850
Supplies
15,800
Property
19,010
Other objects
$ 2,055,186

$

1,028,854
494,611

$

215,415
27,087
58,120
20,612
8,095
17,761
$

1,870,555

44,277
1,598

$

190,679
26,106
57,566
20,043
4,458
14,747

74,985
3,188
35,391
16,238
7,705
1,249
$

184,631

990,653
447,871

$

1,752,123

SCHEDULE 14
2400-SUPPORT SERVICES-PUPIL HEALTH
$
383,119
Salaries
Employee benefits
208,329
Purchased professional and
8,500
technical services
3,150
Purchased property services
Other purchased services
1,827
11,404
Supplies
6,430
Property
$

622,759

$

386,171
191,846

$

8,294
2,471
1,321
9,523
7,929
$

607,555

(3,052)
16,483

$

5,567
1,790
767
11,061
541

206
679
506
1,881
(1,499)
$

15,204

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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380,152
182,881

$

582,759

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
'UNFAVORABLEl

2013
ACTUAL

BUDGET

2012
ACTUAL

SCHEDULE 15
2500-SUPPORT SERVICES-BUSINESS
$
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and
technical services
Purchased property services
Other purchased services
Supplies
Property
Other objects
$

271,385
192,802

$

$

35,494
2,866
17,613
6,342
126
5,459

55,000
10,000
22,250
12,700
4,750
2,000
570,887

232,096
146,178

$

446,174

39,289
46,624

$

19,506
7,134
4,637
6,358
4,624
(3,459)
$

124,713

340,867
150,971
35,714
2,588
7,724
7,404
928
16,960

$

563,156

SCHEDULE 16
2600-SUPPORT SERVICES-OPERATION OF PLANT SERVICES
$
$ 1,382,554
1,372,619
Salaries
826,898
854,720
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and
6,382
technical services
0
1,134,530
1,018,613
Purchased property services
209,432
283,662
Other purchased services
473,096
Supplies
691,058
48,250
39,065
Property
6,027
7,125
Other objects
$ 4,401,899

$

3,952,132

$

9,935
27,822

$

4,133
869,604
223,487
559,532
4,847
616

(6,382)
115,917
74,230
217,962
9, I 85
1,098
$

449,767

1,346,306
751,174

$

3,759,699

SCHEDULE 17
2700-SUPPORT SERVICES-STUDENT
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and
technical services
Purchased property services
Other purchased services
Supplies
Property
Other objects

$

$

$

$

0

0

0

0

0
0
3,004,482
17,200
14,250
0

0
0
2,567,319
19,027
8,292
0

0
0
437,163
(1,827)
5,958
0

0
0
2,967,176
(8,733)
14,299
0

$ 3,035,932

$

2,594,638

$

441,294

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements,
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$

2,972,742

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
'UNFAVORABLE)

2013
ACTUAL

BUDGET

2012
ACTUAL

SCHEDULE 18
2800-SUPPORT SERVICES-CENTRAL
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and
technical services
Purchased property services
Other purchased services
Supplies
Property
Other objects

$

25,918
4,747

$

0
0
2,187
4,100
1,500
2,000
$

40,452

49,818
13,493

$

65,322

$

0
0
2,187
3,600
1,500
489

0
0
0
500
0
1,511

$

(23,900)
(8,746)

$

(24,870)

89,907
19,430
0
0
371
1,410
0
1,393

$

112,511

SCHEDULE 19
2900-SUPPORT SERVICES-OTHER
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and
technical services
Other purchased services
Supplies

$

$

$

0

0

0

0
70,000
0

0
63,545
0

0
6,455
0

0
68,497
0

70,000

$

63,545

$

6,455

$

68,497

$ 13,136,543

$

11,711,220

$

1,425,323

$

11,884,390

$

TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICES

$

0

SCHEDULE 20
3200-0PERA TION OF NONINSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
STUDENT ACTIVITIES
314,927
$
Salaries
$
Employee benefits
112,948
Purchased professional and
technical services
28,691
Purchased property services
12,200
Other purchased services
146,050
37,050
Supplies
Property
67,650
Other objects
32,800
$

752,316

$

311,876
119,485

$

37,516
4,105
117,092
22,471
53,821
19,598
685,964

3,051
(6,537)

$

(8,825)
8,095
28,958
14,579
13,829
13,202
$

66,352

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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351,763
101,447
37,848
5,231
131,729
18,599
56,180
20,517

$

723,314

2013
ACTUAL

BUDGET

VARlANCE
FAVORABLE
"UNFAVORABLE)

2012
ACTUAL

SCHEDULE 21
3300-0PERA TION OF NONINSTRUCTIONAL
COMMUNITY SERVICES
$
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and
technical services
Purchased property services
Other purchased services
Supplies
$

SERVICES
54,998
4,570

$

$

13,342
0
60
9,732

19,000
0
100
6,500
85,168

26,173
3,582

$

52,889

28,825
988

$

5,658
0
40
(3,232)
$

32,279

27,808
3,277
15,800
0
56
8,950

$

55,891

SCHEDULE 22
4000-FAClLITlES ACQUISITION. CONSTRUCTION
CONSTRUCTION & IMPROVEMENT SERVICES

$

$

$

$

SCHEDULE 23
5100-DEBT SERVICE
Other objects

$

3,343,500

$

1,857

$ 3,341,643

$

263

SCHEDULE 24
5200-FUNDS TRANSFER
Other objects

$

300,000

$

3,577,526

$ (3,277,526)

$

3,324,551

SCHEDULE 25
5900-BUDGETARY RESERVE
Other objects

$

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese [mancial statements.
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MURPHY, DOUGHERTY & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants
1310 Church Street, Suite 3000
Moscow, PA 18444
(570) 848-2866 Tel
(570) 848-2833 Fax

J. PAUL MURPHY, CPA
MICHAEL DOUGHERTY, CPA
PAUL T. MURPHY, CPA

November 4,2013

Board of Education
Tunkhannock Area School District
Tunkhannock, Pennsylvania
To the Members ofthe Board:
We have performed the Single Audit of the Tunkhannock Area School District for the year ended June
30,2013, and have enclosed the Single Audit reporting package.
The Single Audit was done to fulfill the requirements of the OMB Circular A-133. It entailed: 1. An
audit of the general purpose financial statements and our opinion thereon;
2. a review of compliance and internal control over financial reporting based on an audit of financial statements
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards;
3. an audit of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and our opinion thereon;
4. a review of compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
Please be advised that a management letter was not necessary as part of our report.
One copy ofthe Audit Report was distributed to:
b) Office ofProthonatary
Wyoming County
Tunkhannock, Pennsylvania
18657

a) Federal Audit Clearinghouse
Bureau of the Census
1201 E. 10"' Street
Jeffersonville, IN 47132
c) Luzerne County IU 18
368 Tioga Avenue
Kingston, Pennsylvania 18704
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One copy of the Audit Report was electronically submitted to:
a) Conunonwealth of Pennsylvania
Bureau of Audits
Special Audit Services Division
Forum Place_S th Floor
555 Walnut Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17101

Your cooperation in this matter is appreciated.
Very \l'!±ly.yours,

Q-

\

r')'

·4\~
\J

Murphy, Dougherty & Company
Certified Public Accountants
MD/nun

5S.
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MURPHY, DOUGHERTY & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants
1310 Church Street, Suite 3000
Moscow, PA 18444
(570) 848-2866 Tel
(570) 848-2833 Fax

J. PAUL MURPHY, CPA
MICHAEL DOUGHERTY, CPA
PAUL T. MURPHY, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
"GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS"

Board of Education
Tunkhannock Area School District
Tunkhannock, Pennsylvania
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in "Government Auditing Standards" issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Tunkhannock
Area School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Tunkhannock Area School District's basic fmancial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated November 4,2013.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and perfonning our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tunkhannock Area
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to detennine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the fmancial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Tunkhannock Area School District's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Tunkhannock Area
School District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the nonnal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Tunkhannock Area School District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the flIst paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Tunkhannock Area School District's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under "Government Auditing Standards".
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Tunkhannock Area School District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with "Government Auditing Standards" in considering the Tunkhannock Area
School District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
I
purpose.

1\
\ 1

~.~

November 4, 2013
Moscow, Pennsylvania

60.

MURPHY, DOUGHERTY & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants
1310 Church Street, Suite 3000
Moscow, PA 18444
J. PAUL MURPHY, CPA
MICHAEL DOUGHERTY, CPA
PAUL T. MURPHY, CPA

(570) 848-2866 Tel
(570) 848-2833 Fax

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REOUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-I 33

Board of Education
Tunkhannock Area School District
Tunkhannock, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the Tunkhannock Area School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the "OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement" that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Tunkhannock Area
School District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Tunkhannock Area School
District's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in "Government Auditing Standards",
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations". Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Tunkhannock Area School
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on Tunkhannock Area School
District's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Tunkhannock Area School District complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the Tunkhannock Area School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tunkhannock Area School District's internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness ofthe Tunkhannock Area School District's internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
prognun on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal prognun that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identifY all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identifY any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements ofOMB
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

\'

November 4, 2013
Moscow, Pennsylvania
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TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDlNGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. ?013
Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over fmancial reporting:
Material weakness (es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Unmodified
_ _ yes
_ _ yes

~ none

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

_ _ yes

~no

X

no
reported

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness (es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

_ _ yes X
no
_ _ yes~ none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Unmodified

Any audit fmdings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section SlOta)
of circular A-133?
Identification of major programs:
CFDANumber
84.010
84.410

__ yes

~no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Title I
ARRA- Education Jobs

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?
~ yes
Section II - Financial Statement Findings
No matters were reported.
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Ouestioned Costs
No matters were reported.

63.

$300.000
no

TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCI-IDOl. DISTRICT
SCHEDULE or EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAIl ENDING JUNE 30 2013
FEDERAL GRANTORI
PASS·THROUGH G1tANTOR
PROJECr TITLE
U.s. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Pa~selllhrou!!h Ihe l'enns:t:lva!1ia
Oc(!arlmcnl of Education
Tille I Grant
Tillc I Grant
Total CFDA# 8·1.010

SOURCE
CODE

FEDERAL
CFDA
NUMBER

PASS-TlffiOUGH
GRANTOR'S
NUMBER

GRANT I'ERIOD
BEGINNINGI
E1~:lJJING DATE

8·1.010
8,1.010

013-120435
013·130·135

711111-9130/12
711112-9130/13

PItOGHAMOIl
AWARD
AMOUNT

489,881
532,606
1,022,487

ACCRUED OR
(DEFERRED)
REVENUE AT
7/112012

TOTAL
RECEIVED FOR
THE YEAR

S

95,439
396,938
492,377

78,338
78,338

REVENUE
RECOGNIZED

EXPENDITURES

ACCRUED OR
(DEFERRED)
REVENUE AT
6130/20]]

17,101
452,031
469,138

17,101
452,0)7
469,138

55,099
55,0!}9

17,260
18,045
35,305

17,260
111,045
35,]05

165,910
165,9\0

165,9\0
165,910

11 ,379

11,379

681,732

6111,732

110,116

Voc.1tional Education
Vocational Educmion
Tolal CFOAI! 8·1.048

84.048
84.048

380-122095
3110-133085

711111·9130/12
7/1/12·9130/13

34,738
111,045
52,783

17,260
18,045
35,305

Title 1I·lmproving Tcacher Quality
Title II-Improving Teacher Quality
Total CFDA# 84.]67

84.367
8,1.367

020·120435
020-1J0·135

711/1 1-9130/12
7/1/12-9/30113

168,In
165,910
]34,082

22,254
110,7113
133,037

AlmA Education Jobs Fund
TOTAL PASSEDTI-IRDUGJ-! PENNSYLVANIA
DEI'ARTMENT OF ED!!CATION
Passed throUGh the Luzcnlc 1U 1/ III
Individuals with Di5nbi1ilics Educ. Act
Individuals wilh Disabilities Educ. Act
TO\<l1 CFDAI! 84.017

8HIO

11,379

11,379

1,420,731

672,098

100,591

287,979
300,515
588,494

287,979

187,979

287,979

300,515
300,515

300,515
300,515

187,979

187,979

287,979

588,494
2,009,125

300,515
971,613

300,515
'101,107

187,979
969,711

287,979
969,711

287,979
398,105

TOTA[. LUZERNE IU # 18
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
u.s. DEPARTMENT OF AGlUCULTUHE
l'a~~cd through the l'enns}:lva!1ia
Dcpartlncnt of AGricultUre
National School Lunch I'rogrum- Commoditie!
Pnso;cd thrOUGh the I'cnn<;}:lvanin
Del1011t[!1enl of Educnlion
Na1ion'~1 School Lunch I'rogrolm,C~5h
Total CFOAI! 10.555
National School Brcakthst Program

84.027
114.027

140·141963

NIA
NIA

711/12·6/]0113

711112·6/30113
7/1111-6/30112

55,127
55,127

NIA

7/1112·6/30/13

NIA

93,369

(20,514)

117,103

87,103

(26,780)

10.555

NIA

7/1112.-6/30113

NIA
N/A

489,367
582,736

24.180
3,666

480,767
567,870

480,767
567,1170

15,580
{\ 1,1(0)

N/A

121,437

6,743

118,914

118,914

4,220

10,409

686,784

6116,784

(6,980)

0

16,099

16,099

2,669

10,409

702,883

701,883

411,516

1,672,594

1,672,594

10.553

NIA

7/1111·6/30113

NIA

10.582

NIA

704,173

NIA

7/1111·6/30113

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTtIRE

NIA

TOTAl. FEDERAL A\Vf~HDS

2,009,225
SOURCE CODES'

22,254

10.555

Totnl Child Nutrition Cluslcr
Fresh Fruit nnu Vegetable Program

22,254

13,430
717,603
1,6')0,216

0- Direct Funding
I - Indirect Funding
The accompanying notcs nrc an integral pan oflhcse financial statements.
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TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRlCT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30. 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIClES
The Tunkhannock Area School District located in Tunkhannock, Pennsylvania is a school district mandated by
the Pennsylvania Department of Education. The District provides educational services to children in Grades K12.
A.

REPORTING ENTITY
The reporting entity has been defined in accordance with the criteria established in GASB Statement
No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity", as amended by GASB Statement No. 39. The specific criteria
used is as follows: a) financial interdependency; b) selection of governing authority; c) designation of
management; d) ability to significantly influence operations;
e) accountability for fiscal matters; f) scope of public service and g) special financing relationships.
As defmed, there are no other related organizations which should be included in the fmancial
statements. The reporting entity will consist solely ofthe accounts and funds of the District.

B.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
This financial statement has been prepared on the modified basis of accounting except for the National
School Lunch Program which uses the full accrual method.

C.

INVENTORY OF MATERlALS. SUPPLlES AND EOUIPMENT
Materials, supplies and equipment of all federal funds except the National School Lunch Programs
Inventories are expended on a first-in, first-out basis as the foodstuffs and supplies are consumed in
providing meals and services.
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TUNKHANNOCK AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2013

*

NO PRIOR FINDINGS NOTED.
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